#### UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM S-3
REGISTRATION STATEMENT
Under
THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933

KLX Energy Services Holdings, Inc. (Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) 36-4904146 (I.R.S. Employer Identification Number)

3040 Post Oak Boulevard, 15th Floor Houston, Texas 77056 (832) 844-1015

(Addresses, including zip code, and telephone number, including area code, of registrants' principal executive offices)

Christopher J. Baker President & Chief Executive Officer 3040 Post Oak Boulevard, 15th Floor Houston, Texas 77056 (832) 844-1015

(Name, address, including zip code, and telephone number, including area code, of agent for service)

Copies to: Sarah K. Morgan Katherine Terrell Frank Vinson & Elkins L.L.P. 1001 Fannin, Suite 2500 Houston, Texas 77002 (713) 758-2222

Approximate date of commencement of proposed sale to the public: From time to time after this registration statement becomes effective.

If the only securities being registered on this form are being offered pursuant to dividend or interest reinvestment plans, please check the following box.  $\Box$ 

If any of the securities being registered on this form are to be offered on a delayed or continuous basis pursuant to Rule 415 under the Securities Act of 1933, other than securities offered only in connection with dividend or interest reinvestment plans, check the following box:

If this Form is filed to register additional securities for an offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act, please check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering.  $\Box$ 

If this Form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(c) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering.  $\Box$ 

If this Form is a registration statement pursuant to General Instruction I.D. or a post-effective amendment thereto that shall become effective upon filing with the Commission pursuant to Rule 462(e) under the Securities Act, check the following box.

If this Form is a post-effective amendment to a registration statement filed pursuant to General Instruction I.D. filed to register additional securities or additional classes of securities pursuant to Rule 413(b) under the Securities Act, check the following box.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a smaller reporting company, or an emerging growth company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer," "smaller reporting company" and "emerging growth company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer ☐ Accelerated filer

Non-accelerated filer ☐ Smaller reporting or

Smaller reporting company 

Emerging growth company 

If an emerging growth company indicate by check mark if the registrout has elected not to use the extended transition period for completing with any precised financial.

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act.  $\Box$ 

## CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE

Title of Each Class of Securities to be Registered	Amount to be Registered	Proposed Maximum Offering Price Per Share	Proposed Maximum Aggregate Offering Price	Amount of Registration Fees
Primary Offering:				
Common stock, par value \$0.01 per share	(1)(2)	(1)(2)	\$75,000,000(3)	\$8,182.50(3)
Secondary Offering:				_
Common stock, par value \$0.01 per share	2,501,865(2)	(4)	\$29,471,970(5)	\$3,215.40(6)
Total (Primary and Secondary)			\$104,446,951	\$11,397.90

- (1) An indeterminate number of shares of common stock, par value \$0.01 per share ("common stock") is being registered as may from time to time be offered hereunder, on a primary basis, at indeterminate prices with an aggregate initial offering price not to exceed \$75,000,000.
   (2) Includes such indeterminate amount of securities as may be issued upon exercise, conversion or exchange of, pursuant to anti-dilution adjustments, or pursuant to a stock dividend,
- Includes such indeterminate amount of securities as may be issued upon exercise, conversion or exchange of, pursuant to anti-dilution adjustments, or pursuant to a stock dividend, stock split or similar transaction with respect to, securities that provide for such issuance, exercise, conversion, exchange, adjustment, stock split or similar transaction. Separate consideration may or may not be received for any of these securities.
   The proposed maximum aggregate offering price has been calculated pursuant to Rule 457(o) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), and reflects the
- (3) The proposed maximum aggregate offering price has been calculated pursuant to Rule 457(o) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), and reflects the maximum aggregate offering price of securities that may be issued.
   (4) The proposed maximum offering price per share of our common stock as may be offered on a secondary basis will be determined by the selling stockholders from time to time in
- (4) The proposed maximum offering price of scientification with, and at the time of, the sale by the selling stockholder of such securities.
   (5) Estimated solely for the purpose of calculating the registration fee pursuant to Rule 457(c) of the Securities Act on the basis of the average of the high and low sale prices of our common stock on May 11, 2021, as reported on the Nasdaq Global Market (the "Nasdaq"), which date is within five business days prior to filling this Registration Statement.

6) Calculated pursuant to Rule 457(c) of the Securities Act.

The Registrant hereby amends this registration statement on such date or dates as may be necessary to delay its effective date until the Registrant shall file a further amendment which specifically states that this registration statement shall thereafter become effective in accordance with Section 8(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 or until the registration statement shall become effective on such date as the Commission acting pursuant to said Section 8(a), may determine.

# EXPLANATORY NOTE

This registration statement consists of two prospectuses, covering the registration of:

- Shares of common stock of KLX Energy Services Holdings, Inc.; and
- Shares of common stock of KLX Energy Services Holdings, Inc. that may be sold in one or more secondary offerings by the selling stockholders.

The information in this prospectus is not complete and may be changed. We may not sell these securities until the registration statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission is effective. This prospectus is not an offer to sell these securities and it is not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any state where the offer or sale is not permitted.

Subject to completion, dated May 14, 2021

**PROSPECTUS** 



# KLX Energy Services Holdings, Inc.

\$75,000,000

**Common Stock** 

From time to time we may offer and sell shares of our common stock, par value \$0.01 per share ("common stock"). The aggregate initial offering price of all shares of common stock sold by us under this prospectus will not exceed \$75,000,000.

We may offer and sell these securities from time to time in amounts, at prices and on terms to be determined by market conditions and other factors at the time of our offerings. This prospectus provides you with a general description of these securities and the general manner in which we will offer the securities. Each time securities are offered, we will provide a prospectus supplement that will contain specific information about the terms of that offering. Any prospectus supplement may also add, update or change information contained in this prospectus.

Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaq under the symbol "KLXE." On May 13, 2021, the closing price of our common stock was \$11.95.

We are an "emerging growth company" as that term is used in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012, and, as such, have elected to avail ourselves of certain reduced public company reporting requirements for this prospectus and future filings.

You should read carefully this prospectus, the documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus and any prospectus supplement before you invest. See "Risk Factors" beginning on page 2 of this prospectus for information on certain risks related to the purchase of our securities.

We may sell the securities directly to or through underwriters or dealers, and also to other purchasers or through agents. The names of any underwriters or agents that are included in a sale of securities to you, and any applicable commissions or discounts, will be stated in any accompanying prospectus supplement. In addition, the underwriters, if any, may over-allot a portion of the securities.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or determined if this prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

The date of this prospectus is , 2021.

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>Pag</u>
ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS	i
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	ii
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE	ii
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	•
ABOUT KLX ENERGY SERVICES HOLDINGS, INC.	-
RISK FACTORS	2
<u>USE OF PROCEEDS</u>	2
DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK	
<u>PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION</u>	
<u>LEGAL MATTERS</u>	9
<u>EXPERTS</u>	9

#### ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

This prospectus is part of a registration statement that we have filed with the SEC using a "shelf" registration process. Under this shelf registration process, we may offer and sell from time to time the securities described in this prospectus in one or more offerings. This prospectus provides you with a general description of the securities that are registered hereunder that may be offered by us. Each time we offer the securities, we will provide you with a prospectus supplement that will describe, among other things, the specific amounts and prices of the securities being offered and the terms of the offering.

Any prospectus supplement may add, update, or change information contained in this prospectus. Any statement that we make in this prospectus will be modified or superseded by any inconsistent statement made by us in any prospectus supplement. The information in this prospectus is accurate as of its date. Additional information, including our financial statements and the notes thereto, is incorporated in this prospectus by reference to our reports filed with the SEC. Therefore, before you invest in our securities, you should carefully read this prospectus and any prospectus supplement relating to the securities offered to you together with the additional information incorporated by reference in this prospectus and any prospectus supplement (including the documents described under the heading "Where You Can Find More Information" and "Documents Incorporated by Reference" in both this prospectus and any prospectus supplement).

You should rely only on the information contained in or incorporated by reference in this prospectus or any prospectus supplement. We have not authorized any other person to provide you with different information. If anyone provides you with different or inconsistent information, you should not rely on it. Neither we nor anyone acting on our behalf is making an offer to sell these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted. You should not assume that the information incorporated by reference or provided in this prospectus or any prospectus supplement is accurate as of any date other than the date on the front of those documents.

Unless the context otherwise requires, throughout this prospectus and any applicable prospectus supplement, the words "we," "us," the "registrant," "the Company," or "KLXE" refer to KLX Energy Services Holdings, Inc.; and the term "securities" refers to the shares of our common stock registered hereunder.

#### WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We have filed a registration statement with the SEC under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), that registers the offer and sale of the securities covered by this prospectus. The registration statement, including the exhibits attached thereto and incorporated by reference therein, contains additional relevant information about us. In addition, we file annual, quarterly and other reports and other information with the SEC. The SEC maintains a website that contains reports, proxy and information statements and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC. Our SEC filings are available on the SEC's website at www.sec.gov.

We make available free of charge on or through our website, www.klxenergy.com, our filings with the SEC pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act") as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the SEC. We make our website content available for information purposes only. Information contained on our website is not incorporated by reference into this prospectus and does not constitute a part of this prospectus.

#### DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The SEC allows us to "incorporate by reference" the information we have filed with the SEC. This means that we can disclose important information to you without actually including the specific information in this prospectus by referring you to other documents filed separately with the SEC. The information incorporated by reference is an important part of this prospectus. Information that we later provide to the SEC, and which is deemed to be "filed" with the SEC, will automatically update information previously filed with the SEC, and may update or replace information in this prospectus and information previously filed with the SEC.

We incorporate by reference the documents listed below and any filings we make with the SEC under Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14, or 15(d) of the Exchange Act (excluding information deemed to be furnished and not filed with the SEC), after the date on which the registration statement was initially filed with the SEC (including all such documents that we may file with the SEC after the date the registration statement was initially filed and prior to the effectiveness of the registration statement) until all offerings under the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part are completed or terminated:

- our Annual Report on <u>Form 10-K</u> for the year ended January 31, 2021, including those portions of our definitive proxy statement on <u>Schedule 14A</u>, filed on May 7, 2021, incorporated by reference therein;
- our Current Reports on Form 8-K filed on <u>February 16, 2021</u>, <u>February 26, 2021</u> (as amended on <u>March 1, 2021</u>), <u>May 7, 2021</u>, and May 14, 2021;
- the description of our common stock contained in our Registration Statement on Form 10 filed on <u>July 25, 2018</u>, including the amendments thereto filed on <u>August 15, 2018</u> and <u>August 24, 2018</u>, as amended by <u>Exhibit 4.3</u> to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 31, 2021, and any further amendments thereto or reports that we may file in the future for the purpose of updating such description; and
- the consolidated financial statements of Quintana Energy Services, Inc. as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2019, incorporated by reference from our Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed on <u>June 2, 2020</u>, including the amendments thereto filed on <u>June 18, 2020</u> and <u>June 25, 2020</u>.

These reports contain important information about us, our financial condition and our results of operations.

You may obtain copies of any of the documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus from the SEC through the SEC's website at the address provided above. You also may request a copy of any document

incorporated by reference in this prospectus (including exhibits to those documents specifically incorporated by reference in this prospectus), at no cost, by contacting us at:

KLX Energy Services Holdings, Inc. Attention: Investor Relations 3040 Post Oak Boulevard, 15th Floor Houston, Texas 77056 (832) 844-1015

iv

#### CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus and the documents to which the Company refers you to in this prospectus, as well as oral statements made or to be made by the Company, include certain "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of, and subject to the safe harbor created by, the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and other federal securities laws, which are referred to as the safe harbor provisions, with respect to the businesses, strategies and plans of the Company and its expectations relating to its future financial condition and performance. Statements included in this prospectus that are not historical facts are forward-looking statements, including statements about the beliefs and expectations of the management of the Company. Words such as "believe," "continue," "could," "expect," "plan," "anticipate," "intends," "estimate," "forecast," "project," "potential," "predict", "should," "may," "might," "wull," "would" or the negative thereof and similar expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking statements that are intended to be covered by the safe harbor provisions.

Any forward-looking statements in this prospectus, any prospectus supplement, and the information incorporated by reference in this prospectus and each prospectus supplement reflect our current views with respect to future events or to our future financial performance and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other factors that may cause our actual results, performance, or achievements to be materially different from any future results, performance, or achievements expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. Factors that may cause actual results to differ materially from current expectations include, among other things, those described under the heading "Risk Factors" in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC, as supplemented by our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, and discussed elsewhere in this prospectus, each prospectus supplement, and the information incorporated by reference in this prospectus and each prospectus supplement. Given these uncertainties, you should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements.

All subsequent written or oral forward-looking statements attributable to the Company or any person acting on behalf of either company are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements contained or referred to in this section. The Company is not under any obligation, and the Company expressly disclaims any obligation, to update, alter, or otherwise revise any forward-looking statements, whether written or oral, that may be made from time to time, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as may be required by law.

#### ABOUT KLX ENERGY SERVICES HOLDINGS, INC.

KLXE is a growth-oriented provider of diversified oilfield services to leading onshore oil and natural gas exploration and production companies operating in both conventional and unconventional plays in all of the active major basins throughout the United States. The Company delivers mission critical oilfield services focused on drilling, completion, production, and intervention activities for the most technically demanding wells from over 50 service and support facilities located throughout the United States. KLXE's complementary suite of proprietary products and specialized services is supported by technically skilled personnel and a broad portfolio of innovative in-house manufacturing, repair and maintenance capabilities.

We were incorporated in Delaware on June 28, 2018. On September 14, 2018, we completed our spin-off from KLX Inc. and became an independent, publicly traded company. Our principal executive offices are located at 3040 Post Oak Boulevard, 15th Floor, Houston, Texas 77056, and our telephone number is (832) 844-1015. Our website address is www.klxenergy.com. The information on our website is not part of this prospectus.

# **Implications of Being an Emerging Growth Company**

We are an "emerging growth company" as defined in the JOBS Act enacted in April 2012. As a result, we may take advantage of reduced reporting requirements that are otherwise applicable to public companies, including delaying auditor attestation of internal control over financial reporting, providing only two years of audited financial statements and related Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, and reducing executive compensation disclosures.

We will remain an emerging growth company until the earlier to occur of (1) the last day of the fiscal year (a) following the fifth anniversary of the completion of our spin-off, which will be January 31, 2024, (b) in which we have total annual gross revenue of at least \$1.07 billion, or (c) in which we are deemed to be a "large accelerated filer" under the rules of the SEC, which means the market value of our common stock that is held by non-affiliates exceeds \$700 million as of the prior July 31st and (2) the date on which we have issued more than \$1.0 billion in non-convertible debt during the prior three-year period.

We have elected to take advantage of certain of the reduced disclosure obligations in the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part and may elect to take advantage of other reduced reporting requirements in future filings. Additionally, we are subject to an extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting standards. As a result, the information that we provide to our stockholders may be different than what you might receive from other public reporting companies in which you hold equity interests.

#### RISK FACTORS

An investment in our securities involves a significant degree of risk. Before you invest in our securities, you should carefully consider those risk factors included in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K, any subsequently filed Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and any subsequently filed Current Reports on Form 8-K, each of which is incorporated herein by reference, and those risk factors that may be included in any applicable prospectus supplement, together with all of the other information included in this prospectus, any prospectus supplement and the documents we incorporate by reference, in evaluating an investment in our securities. If any of these risks were actually to occur, our business, financial condition or results of operations could be materially adversely affected. Additional risks not presently known to us or that we currently believe are immaterial may also significantly impair our business operations and financial condition. Please read "Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements."

#### **USE OF PROCEEDS**

Unless otherwise specified in an accompanying prospectus supplement, we will use the net proceeds we receive from the sale of the securities covered by this prospectus for general corporate purposes, which may include, among other things, paying or refinancing all or a portion of our indebtedness at the time, and funding acquisitions, capital expenditures and working capital.

The actual application of the net proceeds from the sale of any particular offering of securities using this prospectus will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement relating to such offering.

#### DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

The following description of our common stock is not complete and may not contain all the information you should consider before investing in our common stock. This description is a summary of certain provisions contained in, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation (the "Certificate"), and our third amended and restated bylaws (the "Bylaws").

# **Authorized Capital Stock**

Under the Certificate, our authorized capital stock consists of 110 million shares of common stock, par value \$0.01 per share, and 11 million shares of preferred stock, par value \$0.01 per share ("preferred stock").

#### **Common Stock**

As of May 11, 2021, there were 8,829,137 shares of common stock outstanding.

*Dividend Rights.* Subject to the rights, if any, of the holders of any outstanding series of preferred stock, holders of common stock will be entitled to receive dividends out of any of the Company's funds legally available when, as and if declared by the board of directors of the Company (the "Board").

*Voting Rights.* Each holder of common stock is entitled to one vote per share on all matters on which stockholders are generally entitled to vote. The Certificate does not provide for cumulative voting in the election of directors.

*Liquidation.* If the Company liquidates, dissolves or winds up its affairs, holders of common stock are entitled to share proportionately in the assets of the Company available for distribution to stockholders, subject to the rights, if any, of the holders of any outstanding series of preferred stock.

Other Rights. All of the outstanding shares of common stock are fully paid and nonassessable. The holders of common stock have no preemptive rights and no rights to convert their common stock into any other securities, and our common stock is not subject to any redemption or sinking fund provisions.

#### **Preferred Stock**

Under the Certificate and subject to the limitations prescribed by law, the Board may issue preferred stock in one or more series and may establish from time to time the number of shares to be included in such series and may fix the designation, the voting powers, if any, and preferences and relative participating, optional or other rights, if any, of the shares of each such series and any qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof. See "— Anti-Takeover Effects of Provisions of the Certificate and Bylaws."

When and if the Company issues any shares of preferred stock, the Board will establish the number of shares and designation of such series and the voting powers, if any, and preferences and relative participating, optional or other special rights, and the qualifications, limitations and restrictions thereof, for the particular series of preferred stock.

# Anti-Takeover Effects of Provisions of the Certificate and Bylaws

The Certificate and Bylaws contain, and Delaware statutory law contains, provisions that could make acquisition of the Company by means of a tender offer, a proxy contest or otherwise more difficult. These provisions may discourage certain types of coercive takeover practices and takeover bids that the Board may consider inadequate and encourage persons seeking to acquire control of the Company to first negotiate with the Board. The Company believes that the benefits of increased protection of its ability to negotiate with the

proponent of an unfriendly or unsolicited proposal to acquire or restructure the Company outweigh the disadvantages of discouraging takeover or acquisition proposals because, among other things, negotiation of these proposals could result in an improvement of their terms. The description set forth below is only a summary and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the Certificate and the Bylaws.

Classified Board of Directors. The Certificate provides for the Board to be classified, which consists of three classes of directors. Directors of each class are elected for three-year terms, and each year the Company's stockholders elect one class of the Company's directors, with a term expiring at the third annual meeting of stockholders following the annual meeting at which such directors were elected. Under this classified Board structure, it would take at least two elections of directors for any individual or group to gain control of the Board. Accordingly, these provisions could discourage a third party from initiating a proxy contest, making a tender offer or otherwise attempting to gain control of the Company.

Number of Directors; Filling Vacancies; Removal. The Certificate and Bylaws provide that the Company's business and affairs will be managed by or under the direction of the Board. The Certificate and Bylaws provide that the Board will consist of not less than three nor more than nine members, with the exact number of directors within these limits to be fixed exclusively by the Board. In addition, the Certificate provides that any Board vacancy, including a vacancy resulting from an increase in the number of directors, may be filled solely by the affirmative vote of a majority of the remaining directors then in office, even if less than a quorum of the Board, or by the sole remaining director. Delaware statutory law provides that, if a Delaware corporation has a classified board, unless the certificate of incorporation provides otherwise, its directors may only be removed for cause. The Certificate provides that any director, or the entire Board, may be removed from office at any time, only for cause in accordance with Delaware law, by the affirmative vote of the holders of at least 66 ½3% of the total voting power of the outstanding shares of the Company's capital stock entitled to vote in any annual election of directors, voting as a single class. These provisions may prevent stockholders from removing incumbent directors without cause and filling the resulting vacancies with their own nominees.

*Special Meetings*. The Certificate and Bylaws provide that special meetings of the stockholders may only be called by the Board or certain officers of the Company. These provisions will make it more difficult for stockholders to take an action opposed by the Board.

No Stockholder Action by Written Consent Unless Approved by the Board. The Certificate and Bylaws require that all actions to be taken by stockholders must be taken at a duly called annual or special meeting, and stockholders will not be permitted to act by written consent unless both the action and the taking of the action by written consent are approved in advance by the Board. These provisions may make it more difficult for stockholders to take an action opposed by the Board.

Amendments to the Certificate. The Certificate provides that the affirmative vote of the holders of at least  $66 \frac{2}{3}\%$  of the total voting power of the then-outstanding shares of common stock entitled to vote, voting as a single class, is required to amend or repeal, or adopt any provision inconsistent with certain provisions in the Certificate, including those provisions providing for a classified board, provisions regarding the filling of vacancies on the Board, provisions providing for the removal of directors, provisions regarding the calling of special meetings, provisions regarding stockholder action by written consent and provisions regarding amendment of the Certificate. These provisions may make it more difficult for stockholders to make changes to the Certificate.

Amendments to the Bylaws. The Certificate provides that the Board has the power to adopt, amend or repeal the Bylaws. Any such adoption, amendment or repeal of the Bylaws by the Board shall require approval of a majority of the entire Board. The Certificate provides that, notwithstanding any other provision of the Certificate, the affirmative vote of the holders of at least 66 ½3% of the total voting power of the then-outstanding shares of common stock entitled to vote, voting as a single class, is required for the Company's stockholders to amend or repeal, or adopt any provisions in the Bylaws. These provisions may make it more difficult for stockholders to make changes to the Bylaws that are opposed by the Board.

Requirements for Advance Notification of Stockholder Nomination and Proposals. Under the Bylaws, stockholders of record may nominate persons for election to the Board or bring other business constituting a proper matter for stockholder action at annual meetings only by providing proper notice to the Company secretary. Proper notice must be generally received not less than 90 days nor more than 120 days prior to the first anniversary date of the annual meeting for the preceding year (or, in some cases, prior to the tenth day following the announcement of the meeting) and must include, among other information, the name and address of the stockholder giving the notice, certain information relating to each person whom such stockholder proposes to nominate for election as a director and a brief description of any business such stockholder proposes to bring before the meeting. Nothing in the Bylaws may be deemed to affect any rights of stockholders to request inclusion of proposals in the Company's proxy statement pursuant to Rule 14a-8 under the Exchange Act. Contests for the election of directors or the consideration of stockholder proposals will be precluded if the proper procedures are not followed. Third parties may therefore be discouraged from conducting a solicitation of proxies to elect their own slate of directors or to approve their own proposals.

*Forum and Venue*. The Bylaws provide that, unless the Company consents in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the sole and exclusive forum for certain legal actions involving the Company will be the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware (or, if the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware lacks subject matter jurisdiction, the federal district court for the District of Delaware).

### Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law

Section 203 of the DGCL generally provides that, subject to certain specified exceptions, a corporation will not engage in any "business combination" with any "interested stockholder" for a three-year period following the time that such stockholder becomes an interested stockholder unless (1) before that time, the board of directors of the corporation approved either the business combination or the transaction that resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder, (2) upon consummation of the transaction that resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder owned at least 85% of the voting stock of the corporation outstanding at the time the transaction commenced (excluding certain shares) or (3) on or after such time, both the board of directors of the corporation and at least 66 ½3% of the outstanding voting stock that is not owned by the interested stockholder approves the business combination. Section 203 of the DGCL generally defines an "interested stockholder" to include (x) any person that owns 15% or more of the outstanding voting stock of the corporation or is an affiliate or associate of the corporation and owned 15% or more of the outstanding voting stock of the corporation that resulted in the stockholder approves the business combination. Section 203 of the DGCL generally defines an "interested stockholder" to include (x) any person that owns 15% or more of the outstanding voting stock of the corporation or is an affiliate or associate of the corporation and owned 15% or more of the outstanding voting stock of the corporation at any time within three years immediately prior to the relevant date and (y) the affiliates and associates of any such person.

Section 203 of the DGCL generally defines a "business combination" to include (1) mergers and sales or other dispositions of 10% or more of the corporation's assets with or to an interested stockholder, (2) certain transactions resulting in the issuance or transfer to the interested stockholder of any stock of the corporation or its subsidiaries, (3) certain transactions that would increase the proportionate share of the stock of the corporation or its subsidiaries owned by the interested stockholder and (4) receipt by the interested stockholder of the benefit (except proportionately as a stockholder) of any loans, advances, guarantees, pledges or other financial benefits.

Under certain circumstances, Section 203 of the DGCL makes it more difficult for a person who would be an "interested stockholder" to effect various business combinations with a corporation for a three-year period. A corporation may elect not to be governed by the restrictions on business combination under Section 203 by adopting provisions of its certificate of incorporation or bylaws in accordance with Section 203.

Neither the Certificate nor the Bylaws exclude the Company from the restrictions imposed under Section 203 of the DGCL. Section 203 may encourage companies interested in acquiring the Company to negotiate in advance with the Board as the restrictions on business combinations will apply unless the Board approves, prior to the time the stockholder becomes an interested stockholder, either the business combination or the transaction that results in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder.

# **Transfer Agent and Registrar**

The transfer agent and registrar for our common stock is Computershare.

# Listing

Our common stock is listed on Nasdaq under the ticker symbol "KLXE."

#### PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

We may sell the securities offered by this prospectus in any one or more of the following ways from time to time:

- to or through one or more underwriters, initial purchasers, brokers, or dealers;
- through agents to investors or the public;
- in short or long transactions;
- through put or call option transactions relating to our common stock;
- directly to agents or other purchasers;
- in "at the market offerings" within the meaning of Rule 415(a)(4) of the Securities Act, to or through a market maker or into an existing trading market, on an exchange or otherwise;
- though a combination of any such methods of sale; or
- through any other method described in the applicable prospectus supplement.

The applicable prospectus supplement will set forth the terms of the offering and the method of distribution and will identify any firms acting as underwriters, initial purchasers, dealers, or agents in connection with the offering, including:

- the terms of the offering;
- the names of any underwriters, dealers, or agents;
- the name or names of any managing underwriter or underwriters;
- the purchase price of the securities and the proceeds to us from the sale;
- any options (whether or not for over-allotments) under which the underwriters may purchase additional shares of common stock from us;
- any underwriting discounts, concessions, commissions, or agency fees and other items constituting compensation to underwriters, dealers, or agents;
- any delayed delivery arrangements;
- any public offering price;
- any discounts or concessions allowed or re-allowed or paid by underwriters or dealers to other dealers; or
- any securities exchange or market on which the common stock offered in the prospectus supplement may be listed.

If we use underwriters for a sale of securities, the underwriters will acquire the securities for their own account for resale to the public, either on a firm commitment basis or a best efforts basis. The underwriters may resell the securities in one or more transactions, including negotiated transactions, at a fixed public offering price or at varying prices determined at the time of sale. Underwriters may offer the securities to the public either through underwriting syndicates represented by one or more managing underwriters or directly by one or more firms acting as underwriters. If an underwriter or underwriters are used in the sale of securities hereunder, an underwriting agreement will be executed with the underwriter or underwriters at the time an agreement for sale is reached. Unless we inform you otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement, the obligations of the underwriters to purchase the securities will be subject to certain conditions. We may change from time to time any public offering price and any discounts or concessions the underwriters allow or pay to dealers.

During and after an offering through underwriters, the underwriters may purchase and sell the securities in the open market. These transactions may include overallotment and stabilizing transactions and purchases to

cover syndicate short positions created in connection with the offering. The underwriters may also impose a penalty bid, which means that selling concessions allowed to syndicate members or other broker-dealers for the offered securities sold for their account may be reclaimed by the syndicate if the offered securities are repurchased by the syndicate in stabilizing or covering transactions. These activities may stabilize, maintain, or otherwise affect the market price of the offered securities, which may be higher than the price that might otherwise prevail in the open market. If commenced, the underwriters may discontinue these activities at any time.

Some or all of the securities that we offer though this prospectus may be new issues of securities with no established trading market. Any underwriters to whom we sell our securities for public offering and sale may make a market in those securities, but they will not be obligated to do so and they may discontinue any market making at any time without notice. Accordingly, we cannot assure you of the liquidity of, or continued trading markets for, any securities that we offer.

If dealers are used for the sale of securities, we, or an underwriter, will sell the securities to them as principals. The dealers may then resell those securities to the public at varying prices determined by the dealers at the time of resale. We will include in the applicable prospectus supplement the names of the dealers and the terms of the transaction.

We may also sell the securities through agents designated from time to time. In the applicable prospectus supplement, we will name any agent involved in the offer or sale of the offered securities, and we will describe any commissions payable to the agent. Unless we inform you otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement, any agent will agree to use its reasonable best efforts to solicit purchases for the period of its appointment.

We may sell the securities directly in transactions not involving underwriters, dealers, or agents.

We may sell the securities directly to institutional investors or others who may be deemed to be underwriters within the meaning of the Securities Act with respect to any sale of those securities. We will describe the terms of any such sales in the prospectus supplement.

Underwriters, dealers, and agents that participate in the distribution of the securities may be underwriters as defined in the applicable securities laws and any discounts or commissions they receive from us and any profit on their resale of the securities may be treated as underwriting discounts and commissions under the applicable securities laws. We will identify in the applicable prospectus supplement any underwriters, dealers, or agents and will describe their compensation. We may have agreements with the underwriters, dealers, and agents to indemnify them against specified civil liabilities, including liabilities under the applicable securities laws.

Underwriters, dealers, and agents may engage in transactions with or perform services for us in the ordinary course of their businesses for which they may receive customary fees and reimbursement of expenses.

We may use underwriters with whom we have a material relationship. We will describe the nature of such relationship in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Under the securities laws of some states, the securities offered by this prospectus may be sold in those states only through registered or licensed brokers or dealers.

We may enter into hedging transactions with broker-dealers and the broker-dealers may engage in short sales of the securities in the course of hedging the positions they assume with us, including, without limitation, in connection with distributions of the securities by those broker-dealers. We may enter into option or other transactions with broker-dealers that involve the delivery of the securities offered hereby to the broker-dealers, who may then resell or otherwise transfer those securities. We may also loan or pledge the securities offered hereby to a broker-dealer and the broker-dealer may sell the securities offered hereby so loaned or upon a default may sell or otherwise transfer the pledged securities offered hereby.

# LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the issuance of the securities offered in this prospectus will be passed upon for us by Vinson & Elkins L.L.P., Houston, Texas. If certain legal matters in connection with an offering of the securities made by this prospectus and a related prospectus supplement are passed upon by counsel for the underwriters of such offering, that counsel will be named in the applicable prospectus supplement related to that offering.

# **EXPERTS**

The financial statements incorporated in this Prospectus by reference from the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 31, 2021, have been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report, which is incorporated herein by reference. Such financial statements have been so incorporated in reliance upon the report of such firm given upon their authority as experts in accounting and auditing.

The audited historical financial statements of Quintana Energy Services, Inc. included in Annex P of KLX Energy Services Holdings, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-4 dated June 25, 2020 have been so incorporated in reliance on the report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

The information in this prospectus is not complete and may be changed. We may not sell these securities until the registration statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission is effective. This prospectus is not an offer to sell these securities and it is not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any state where the offer or sale is not permitted.

Subject to completion, dated May 14, 2021

**PROSPECTUS** 



# KLX Energy Services Holdings, Inc.

2,501,865 shares of Common Stock

The securities to be offered and sold using this prospectus include 2,501,865 currently issued and outstanding shares of our common stock, par value \$0.01 per share ("common stock"). These shares of common stock may be offered and sold by the selling stockholders named in this prospectus or in any supplement to this prospectus from time to time in accordance with the provisions set forth under "Plan of Distribution."

The selling stockholders may offer and sell the shares of common stock offered by this prospectus from time to time in amounts, at prices and on terms to be determined by market conditions and other factors at the time of any such offerings. The selling stockholders may sell the shares of common stock at prevailing market prices or at prices negotiated with buyers. The selling stockholders will be responsible for any commissions due to brokers, dealers or agents. We will be responsible for all other offering expenses. We will not receive any of the proceeds from the sale by the selling stockholders of the shares of common stock offered by this prospectus.

Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaq under the symbol "KLXE." On May 13, 2021, the closing price of our common stock was \$11.95.

We are an "emerging growth company" as that term is used in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012, and, as such, have elected to avail ourselves of certain reduced public company reporting requirements for this prospectus and future filings.

You should read carefully this prospectus, the documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus and any prospectus supplement before you invest. See "Risk Factors" beginning on page 2 of this prospectus for information on certain risks related to the purchase of our securities.

The selling stockholders may sell the securities directly to or through underwriters or dealers, and also to other purchasers or through agents. The names of any underwriters or agents that are included in a sale of securities to you, and any applicable commissions or discounts, will be stated in any accompanying prospectus supplement. In addition, the underwriters, if any, may over-allot a portion of the securities.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or determined if this prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

The date of this prospectus is , 2021.

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>Pag</u>
ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS	i
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	ii
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE	ii
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	•
ABOUT KLX ENERGY SERVICES HOLIDNGS, INC.	=
RISK FACTORS	
<u>USE OF PROCEEDS</u>	
DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK	3
SELLING STOCKHOLDERS	:
PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION	1:
<u>LEGAL MATTERS</u>	13
<u>EXPERTS</u>	13

i

#### ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

This prospectus is part of a registration statement that we have filed with the SEC using a "shelf" registration process. Under this shelf registration process, the selling stockholders may offer and sell from time to time the securities described in this prospectus in one or more offerings. This prospectus provides you with a general description of the securities that are registered hereunder that may be offered by the selling stockholders. Each time we offer the securities, we and the selling stockholders will provide you with a prospectus supplement that will describe, among other things, the specific amounts and prices of the securities being offered and the terms of the offering.

Any prospectus supplement may add, update, or change information contained in this prospectus. Any statement that we make in this prospectus will be modified or superseded by any inconsistent statement made by us in any prospectus supplement. The information in this prospectus is accurate as of its date. Additional information, including our financial statements and the notes thereto, is incorporated in this prospectus by reference to our reports filed with the SEC. Therefore, before you invest in our securities, you should carefully read this prospectus and any prospectus supplement relating to the securities offered to you together with the additional information incorporated by reference in this prospectus and any prospectus supplement (including the documents described under the heading "Where You Can Find More Information" and "Documents Incorporated by Reference" in both this prospectus and any prospectus supplement).

You should rely only on the information contained in or incorporated by reference in this prospectus or any prospectus supplement. Neither we nor the selling stockholders have authorized any other person to provide you with different information. If anyone provides you with different or inconsistent information, you should not rely on it. Neither we, the selling stockholders nor anyone acting on our behalf is making an offer to sell these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted. You should not assume that the information incorporated by reference or provided in this prospectus or any prospectus supplement is accurate as of any date other than the date on the front of those documents.

Unless the context otherwise requires, throughout this prospectus and any applicable prospectus supplement, the words "we," "us," the "registrant," "the Company," or "KLXE" refer to KLX Energy Services Holdings, Inc.; and the term "securities" refers to the shares of our common stock registered hereunder.

#### WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We have filed a registration statement with the SEC under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), that registers the offer and sale of the securities covered by this prospectus. The registration statement, including the exhibits attached thereto and incorporated by reference therein, contains additional relevant information about us. In addition, we file annual, quarterly and other reports and other information with the SEC. The SEC maintains a website that contains reports, proxy and information statements and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC. Our SEC filings are available on the SEC's website at www.sec.gov.

We make available free of charge on or through our website, www.klxenergy.com, our filings with the SEC pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act") as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the SEC. We make our website content available for information purposes only. Information contained on our website is not incorporated by reference into this prospectus and does not constitute a part of this prospectus.

#### DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The SEC allows us to "incorporate by reference" the information we have filed with the SEC. This means that we can disclose important information to you without actually including the specific information in this prospectus by referring you to other documents filed separately with the SEC. The information incorporated by reference is an important part of this prospectus. Information that we later provide to the SEC, and which is deemed to be "filed" with the SEC, will automatically update information previously filed with the SEC, and may update or replace information in this prospectus and information previously filed with the SEC.

We incorporate by reference the documents listed below and any filings we make with the SEC under Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14, or 15(d) of Exchange Act (excluding information deemed to be furnished and not filed with the SEC), after the date on which the registration statement was initially filed with the SEC (including all such documents that we may file with the SEC after the date the registration statement was initially filed and prior to the effectiveness of the registration statement) until all offerings under the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part are completed or terminated:

- our Annual Report on <u>Form 10-K</u> for the year ended January 31, 2021, including those portions of our definitive proxy statement on <u>Schedule 14A</u>, filed on May 7, 2021, incorporated by reference therein;
- our Current Reports on Form 8-K filed on <u>February 16, 2021</u>, <u>February 26, 2021</u> (as amended on <u>March 1, 2021</u>), <u>May 7, 2021</u>, and May 14, 2021;
- the description of our common stock contained in our Registration Statement on Form 10 filed on <u>July 25, 2018</u>, including the amendments thereto filed on <u>August 15, 2018</u> and <u>August 24, 2018</u>, as amended by <u>Exhibit 4.3</u> to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 31, 2021, and any further amendments thereto or reports that we may file in the future for the purpose of updating such description; and
- the consolidated financial statements of Quintana Energy Services, Inc. as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 and for each of the three years
  in the period ended December 31, 2019, incorporated by reference from our Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed on <u>June 2, 2020</u>,
  including the amendments thereto filed on <u>June 18, 2020</u> and <u>June 25, 2020</u>.

These reports contain important information about us, our financial condition and our results of operations.

You may obtain copies of any of the documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus from the SEC through the SEC's website at the address provided above. You also may request a copy of any document

incorporated by reference in this prospectus (including exhibits to those documents specifically incorporated by reference in this prospectus), at no cost, by contacting us at:

KLX Energy Services Holdings, Inc. Attention: Investor Relations 3040 Post Oak Boulevard, 15th Floor Houston, Texas 77056 (832) 844-1015

#### CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus and the documents to which the Company refers you to in this prospectus, as well as oral statements made or to be made by the Company, include certain "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of, and subject to, the safe harbor created by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and other federal securities laws, which are referred to as the safe harbor provisions, with respect to the businesses, strategies and plans of the Company and its expectations relating to its future financial condition and performance. Statements included in this prospectus that are not historical facts are forward-looking statements, including statements about the beliefs and expectations of the management of the Company. Words such as "believe," "continue," "could," "expect," "plan," "anticipate," "intends," "estimate," "forecast," "project," "potential," "predict", "should," "may," "might," "will," "would" or the negative thereof and similar expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking statements that are intended to be covered by the safe harbor provisions.

Any forward-looking statements in this prospectus, any prospectus supplement, and the information incorporated by reference in this prospectus and each prospectus supplement reflect our current views with respect to future events or to our future financial performance and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other factors that may cause our actual results, performance, or achievements to be materially different from any future results, performance, or achievements expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. Factors that may cause actual results to differ materially from current expectations include, among other things, those described under the heading "Risk Factors" in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC, as supplemented by our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, and discussed elsewhere in this prospectus, each prospectus supplement, and the information incorporated by reference in this prospectus and each prospectus supplement. Given these uncertainties, you should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements.

All subsequent written or oral forward-looking statements attributable to the Company or any person acting on behalf of either company are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements contained or referred to in this section. The Company is not under any obligation, and the Company expressly disclaims any obligation, to update, alter, or otherwise revise any forward-looking statements, whether written or oral, that may be made from time to time, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as may be required by law.

#### ABOUT KLX ENERGY SERVICES HOLDINGS, INC.

KLXE is a growth-oriented provider of diversified oilfield services to leading onshore oil and natural gas exploration and production companies operating in both conventional and unconventional plays in all of the active major basins throughout the United States. The Company delivers mission critical oilfield services focused on drilling, completion, production, and intervention activities for the most technically demanding wells from over 50 service and support facilities located throughout the United States. KLXE's complementary suite of proprietary products and specialized services is supported by technically skilled personnel and a broad portfolio of innovative in-house manufacturing, repair and maintenance capabilities.

We were incorporated in Delaware on June 28, 2018. On September 14, 2018, we completed our spin-off from KLX Inc. and became an independent, publicly-traded company. Our principal executive offices are located at 3040 Post Oak Boulevard, 15th Floor, Houston, Texas 77056, and our telephone number is (832) 844-1015. Our website address is www.klxenergy.com. The information on our website is not part of this prospectus.

#### **Implications of Being an Emerging Growth Company**

We are an "emerging growth company" as defined in the JOBS Act enacted in April 2012. As a result, we may take advantage of reduced reporting requirements that are otherwise applicable to public companies, including delaying auditor attestation of internal control over financial reporting, providing only two years of audited financial statements and related Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, and reducing executive compensation disclosures.

We will remain an emerging growth company until the earlier to occur of (1) the last day of the fiscal year (a) following the fifth anniversary of the completion of our spin-off, which will be January 31, 2024, (b) in which we have total annual gross revenue of at least \$1.07 billion, or (c) in which we are deemed to be a "large accelerated filer" under the rules of the SEC, which means the market value of our common stock that is held by non-affiliates exceeds \$700 million as of the prior July 31st and (2) the date on which we have issued more than \$1.0 billion in non-convertible debt during the prior three-year period.

We have elected to take advantage of certain of the reduced disclosure obligations in the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part and may elect to take advantage of other reduced reporting requirements in future filings. Additionally, we are subject to an extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting standards. As a result, the information that we provide to our stockholders may be different than what you might receive from other public reporting companies in which you hold equity interests.

#### RISK FACTORS

An investment in our securities involves a significant degree of risk. Before you invest in our securities, you should carefully consider those risk factors included in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K, any subsequently filed Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and any subsequently filed Current Reports on Form 8-K, each of which is incorporated herein by reference, and those risk factors that may be included in any applicable prospectus supplement, together with all of the other information included in this prospectus, any prospectus supplement and the documents we incorporate by reference, in evaluating an investment in our securities. If any of these risks were actually to occur, our business, financial condition or results of operations could be materially adversely affected. Additional risks not presently known to us or that we currently believe are immaterial may also significantly impair our business operations and financial condition. Please read "Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements."

# **USE OF PROCEEDS**

The Company will not receive any proceeds from the sale of the common stock offered under this prospectus. Any proceeds from the sale of common stock under this prospectus will be received by the selling stockholders.

#### DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

The following description of our common stock is not complete and may not contain all the information you should consider before investing in our common stock. This description is a summary of certain provisions contained in, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation (the "Certificate"), and our third amended and restated bylaws (the "Bylaws").

# **Authorized Capital Stock**

Under the Certificate, our authorized capital stock consists of 110 million shares of common stock, par value \$0.01 per share, and 11 million shares of preferred stock, par value \$0.01 per share ("preferred stock").

#### **Common Stock**

As of May 11, 2021, there were 8,829,137 shares of common stock outstanding.

*Dividend Rights.* Subject to the rights, if any, of the holders of any outstanding series of preferred stock, holders of common stock will be entitled to receive dividends out of any of the Company's funds legally available when, as and if declared by the board of directors of the Company (the "Board").

*Voting Rights.* Each holder of common stock is entitled to one vote per share on all matters on which stockholders are generally entitled to vote. The Certificate does not provide for cumulative voting in the election of directors.

*Liquidation.* If the Company liquidates, dissolves or winds up its affairs, holders of common stock are entitled to share proportionately in the assets of the Company available for distribution to stockholders, subject to the rights, if any, of the holders of any outstanding series of preferred stock.

Other Rights. All of the outstanding shares of common stock are fully paid and nonassessable. The holders of common stock have no preemptive rights and no rights to convert their common stock into any other securities, and our common stock is not subject to any redemption or sinking fund provisions.

#### **Preferred Stock**

Under the Certificate and subject to the limitations prescribed by law, the Board may issue preferred stock in one or more series and may establish from time to time the number of shares to be included in such series and may fix the designation, the voting powers, if any, and preferences and relative participating, optional or other rights, if any, of the shares of each such series and any qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof. See "— Anti-Takeover Effects of Provisions of the Certificate and Bylaws."

When and if the Company issues any shares of preferred stock, the Board will establish the number of shares and designation of such series and the voting powers, if any, and preferences and relative participating, optional or other special rights, and the qualifications, limitations and restrictions thereof, for the particular series of preferred stock.

# Anti-Takeover Effects of Provisions of the Certificate and Bylaws

The Certificate and Bylaws contain, and Delaware statutory law contains, provisions that could make acquisition of the Company by means of a tender offer, a proxy contest or otherwise more difficult. These provisions may discourage certain types of coercive takeover practices and takeover bids that the Board may consider inadequate and encourage persons seeking to acquire control of the Company to first negotiate with the Board. The Company believes that the benefits of increased protection of its ability to negotiate with the

proponent of an unfriendly or unsolicited proposal to acquire or restructure the Company outweigh the disadvantages of discouraging takeover or acquisition proposals because, among other things, negotiation of these proposals could result in an improvement of their terms. The description set forth below is only a summary and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the Certificate and the Bylaws.

Classified Board of Directors. The Certificate provides for the Board to be classified, which consists of three classes of directors. Directors of each class are elected for three-year terms, and each year the Company's stockholders elect one class of the Company's directors, with a term expiring at the third annual meeting of stockholders following the annual meeting at which such directors were elected. Under this classified Board structure, it would take at least two elections of directors for any individual or group to gain control of the Board. Accordingly, these provisions could discourage a third party from initiating a proxy contest, making a tender offer or otherwise attempting to gain control of the Company.

Number of Directors; Filling Vacancies; Removal. The Certificate and Bylaws provide that the Company's business and affairs will be managed by or under the direction of the Board. The Certificate and Bylaws provide that the Board will consist of not less than three nor more than nine members, with the exact number of directors within these limits to be fixed exclusively by the Board. In addition, the Certificate provides that any Board vacancy, including a vacancy resulting from an increase in the number of directors, may be filled solely by the affirmative vote of a majority of the remaining directors then in office, even if less than a quorum of the Board, or by the sole remaining director. Delaware statutory law provides that, if a Delaware corporation has a classified board, unless the certificate of incorporation provides otherwise, its directors may only be removed for cause. The Certificate provides that any director, or the entire Board, may be removed from office at any time, only for cause in accordance with Delaware law, by the affirmative vote of the holders of at least 66 2/3% of the total voting power of the outstanding shares of the Company's capital stock entitled to vote in any annual election of directors, voting as a single class. These provisions may prevent stockholders from removing incumbent directors without cause and filling the resulting vacancies with their own nominees.

*Special Meetings*. The Certificate and Bylaws provide that special meetings of the stockholders may only be called by the Board or certain officers of the Company. These provisions will make it more difficult for stockholders to take an action opposed by the Board.

No Stockholder Action by Written Consent Unless Approved by the Board. The Certificate and Bylaws require that all actions to be taken by stockholders must be taken at a duly called annual or special meeting, and stockholders will not be permitted to act by written consent unless both the action and the taking of the action by written consent are approved in advance by the Board. These provisions may make it more difficult for stockholders to take an action opposed by the Board.

Amendments to the Certificate. The Certificate provides that the affirmative vote of the holders of at least 66 2/3% of the total voting power of the then-outstanding shares of common stock entitled to vote, voting as a single class, is required to amend or repeal, or adopt any provision inconsistent with certain provisions in the Certificate, including those provisions providing for a classified board, provisions regarding the filling of vacancies on the Board, provisions providing for the removal of directors, provisions regarding the calling of special meetings, provisions regarding stockholder action by written consent and provisions regarding amendment of the Certificate. These provisions may make it more difficult for stockholders to make changes to the Certificate.

Amendments to the Bylaws. The Certificate provides that the Board has the power to adopt, amend or repeal the Bylaws. Any such adoption, amendment or repeal of the Bylaws by the Board shall require approval of a majority of the entire Board. The Certificate provides that, notwithstanding any other provision of the Certificate, the affirmative vote of the holders of at least 662/3% of the total voting power of the then-outstanding shares of common stock entitled to vote, voting as a single class, is required for the Company's stockholders to amend or repeal, or adopt any provisions in the Bylaws. These provisions may make it more difficult for stockholders to make changes to the Bylaws that are opposed by the Board.

Requirements for Advance Notification of Stockholder Nomination and Proposals. Under the Bylaws, stockholders of record may nominate persons for election to the Board or bring other business constituting a proper matter for stockholder action at annual meetings only by providing proper notice to the Company secretary. Proper notice must be generally received not less than 90 days nor more than 120 days prior to the first anniversary date of the annual meeting for the preceding year (or, in some cases, prior to the tenth day following the announcement of the meeting) and must include, among other information, the name and address of the stockholder giving the notice, certain information relating to each person whom such stockholder proposes to nominate for election as a director and a brief description of any business such stockholder proposes to bring before the meeting. Nothing in the Bylaws may be deemed to affect any rights of stockholders to request inclusion of proposals in the Company's proxy statement pursuant to Rule 14a-8 under the Exchange Act. Contests for the election of directors or the consideration of stockholder proposals will be precluded if the proper procedures are not followed. Third parties may therefore be discouraged from conducting a solicitation of proxies to elect their own slate of directors or to approve their own proposals.

*Forum and Venue*. The Bylaws provide that, unless the Company consents in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the sole and exclusive forum for certain legal actions involving the Company will be the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware (or, if the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware lacks subject matter jurisdiction, the federal district court for the District of Delaware).

### Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law

Section 203 of the DGCL generally provides that, subject to certain specified exceptions, a corporation will not engage in any "business combination" with any "interested stockholder" for a three-year period following the time that such stockholder becomes an interested stockholder unless (1) before that time, the board of directors of the corporation approved either the business combination or the transaction that resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder, (2) upon consummation of the transaction that resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder owned at least 85% of the voting stock of the corporation outstanding at the time the transaction commenced (excluding certain shares) or (3) on or after such time, both the board of directors of the corporation and at least 662/3% of the outstanding voting stock that is not owned by the interested stockholder approves the business combination. Section 203 of the DGCL generally defines an "interested stockholder" to include (x) any person that owns 15% or more of the outstanding voting stock of the corporation or is an affiliate or associate of the corporation and owned 15% or more of the outstanding voting stock of the corporation that resulted in the stockholder interested stockholder approves the business combination. Section 203 of the DGCL generally defines an "interested stockholder" to include (x) any person that owns 15% or more of the outstanding voting stock of the corporation or is an affiliate or associate of the corporation and owned 15% or more of the outstanding voting stock of the corporation at any time within three years immediately prior to the relevant date and (y) the affiliates and associates of any such person.

Section 203 of the DGCL generally defines a "business combination" to include (1) mergers and sales or other dispositions of 10% or more of the corporation's assets with or to an interested stockholder, (2) certain transactions resulting in the issuance or transfer to the interested stockholder of any stock of the corporation or its subsidiaries, (3) certain transactions that would increase the proportionate share of the stock of the corporation or its subsidiaries owned by the interested stockholder and (4) receipt by the interested stockholder of the benefit (except proportionately as a stockholder) of any loans, advances, guarantees, pledges or other financial benefits.

Under certain circumstances, Section 203 of the DGCL makes it more difficult for a person who would be an "interested stockholder" to effect various business combinations with a corporation for a three-year period. A corporation may elect not to be governed by the restrictions on business combination under Section 203 by adopting provisions of its certificate of incorporation or bylaws in accordance with Section 203.

Neither the Certificate nor the Bylaws exclude the Company from the restrictions imposed under Section 203 of the DGCL. Section 203 may encourage companies interested in acquiring the Company to negotiate in advance with the Board as the restrictions on business combinations will apply unless the Board approves, prior to the time the stockholder becomes an interested stockholder, either the business combination or the transaction that results in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder.

# **Transfer Agent and Registrar**

The transfer agent and registrar for our common stock is Computershare.

# Listing

Our common stock is listed on Nasdaq under the ticker symbol "KLXE."

#### SELLING STOCKHOLDERS

This prospectus covers the public resale of the shares of common stock issued by us to the selling stockholders named below in our acquisition (the "Merger") of Quintana Energy Services Inc. ("QES"), which we refer to collectively herein as the "Shares". The selling stockholders may from time to time offer and sell pursuant to this prospectus any or all of the Shares owned by them, but make no representation that any of the Shares will be offered for sale. Except as described below under "Director Relationships," and as may be updated in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K, including any proxy statement incorporated into such Annual Report, none of the selling stockholders is a director, officer or employee of ours or an affiliate of such person. The table below presents information regarding the selling stockholders and the Shares that each selling stockholder may offer and sell from time to time under this prospectus.

The following table sets forth:

- the name of each selling stockholder;
- · the number of Shares beneficially owned by each selling stockholder prior to the sale of the Shares covered by this prospectus;
- the number of Shares that may be offered by each selling stockholder pursuant to this prospectus;
- the number of Shares to be beneficially owned by each selling stockholder following the sale of any Shares covered by this prospectus; and
- the percentage of common stock owned by the selling stockholder following the sale of any Shares covered by this Prospectus.

All information with respect to common stock ownership of the selling stockholders has been furnished by or on behalf of the selling stockholders and is as of May 1, 2021. Based on information supplied by the selling stockholders, except as may otherwise be indicated in the footnotes to the table below, each selling stockholder has sole voting and dispositive power with respect to the common stock reported as owned by them.

Because the selling stockholders identified in the table may sell some or all of the Shares owned by them which are included in this prospectus, and because there are currently no agreements, arrangements or understandings with respect to the sale of any of the Shares, no estimate can be given as to the number of Shares available for resale hereby that will be held by the selling stockholders upon termination of this offering. In addition, the selling stockholders may have sold, transferred or otherwise disposed of, or may sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of, at any time and from time to time, the common stock they hold in transactions exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act after the date on which they provided the information set forth on the table below. We have, therefore, assumed for the purposes of the following table, that the selling stockholders will sell all of the Shares beneficially owned by them that are covered by this prospectus, but will not sell any other shares of our common stock that they may presently own. The percent of beneficial ownership for the selling stockholders is based on 8,829,137 shares of our common stock outstanding as of the date of this prospectus.

	Shares of Common Stock Owned Prior to this Offering		Number of Shares of Common Stock to be Sold Pursuant to this Prospectus	Shares of Common Stock Owned After Sale of Shares	
	Number	Percent	<u> </u>	Number	Percent
Selling Stockholders					
Quintana					
Quintana Energy Partners—					
QES Holdings, L.L.C. (1)	517,979	5.87%	517,979	0	0%
Quintana Energy Fund—FI,					
LP (1)	30,911	*	30,911	0	0%
Quintana Energy Fund—TE,					
LP (1)	77,037	*	77,037	0	0%
QEP Management Co., LP (2)	9,690	*	9,690	0	0%
Robertson QES					
Robertson QES Investment					
LLC (3)	279,657	3.17%	279,657	0	0%
Corbin J. Robertson, Jr.					
Corbin J. Robertson, Jr. (4)	26,793	*	26,793	0	0%
Archer					
Archer Holdco LLC (5)	919,998	10.42%	919,998	0	0%
Geveran					
Geveran Investments					
Limited (6)	446,000	5.05%	446,000	0	0%
Famatown Finance					
Limited (6)	193,800	2.20%	193,800	0	0%
Total	2,501,865	28.34%	2,501, 865	0	0%

Maximum

- Denotes less than 1% of the shares outstanding.
- (1) The general partner of each of Quintana Energy Partners, L.P., Quintana Energy Fund—FI, LP and Quintana Energy Fund—TE, LP is Quintana Capital Group, L.P. Quintana Capital Group, L.P. Quintana Capital Group GP Ltd. is the general partner of Quintana Capital Group, L.P. and may be deemed to have beneficial ownership of the shares directly held by Quintana Energy Partners—QES Holdings, L.L.C., Quintana Energy Fund—TE, LP and Quintana Energy Fund—FI, LP. The board of directors of Quintana Capital Group GP Ltd. consists of Paul Cornell, Donald L. Evans, Corbin J. Robertson, Jr., Corbin J. Robertson III and William K. Robertson, none of whom individually have voting and dispositive power over these shares. Each of Corbin J. Robertson III and William K. Robertson are the children of Corbin J. Robertson. Each such person expressly disclaims beneficial ownership over these shares, except to the extent of any pecuniary interest therein. Corbin J. Robertson, Jr., as a member of the board of directors of Quintana Capital Group GP Ltd., may be deemed to beneficially own these shares due to his additional rights regarding the management Co. GP, LLC, may be deemed to beneficially own these shares due to his additional rights regarding the management Co. GP, LLC. The mailing address of Quintana Capital Group, L.P. and its affiliates is 1415 Louisiana Street, Suite 2400, Houston, TX, 77056.
- (2) QEP Management Co. GP, LLC, the general partner of QEP Management Co., LP, may also be deemed to

be the beneficial owner of these shares. The board of managers of QEP Management Co. GP, LLC consists of Donald L. Evans, Paul Cornell, Corbin J. Robertson, Jr., Corbin J. Robertson III and William K. Robertson, none of whom individually have voting and dispositive power over these shares. Each of Corbin J. Robertson III and William K. Robertson are the children of Corbin J. Robertson, Jr. Each such person expressly disclaims beneficial ownership over these shares, except to the extent of any pecuniary interest therein. Corbin J. Robertson, Jr., as a member of the board of managers of QEP Management Co. GP, LLC, may be deemed to beneficially own these shares due to his additional rights regarding the management of QEP Management Co. GP, LLC. The mailing address of QEP Management Co., LP and its affiliates is 1415 Louisiana Street, Suite 2400, Houston, TX, 77056.

- (3) The sole manager of Robertson QES Investment LLC has voting and dispositive power over these shares. Corbin J. Robertson, Jr. serves as the sole manager of Robertson QES Investment LLC and expressly disclaims ownership over these shares, except to the extent of any pecuniary interest therein. Certain children of Mr. Robertson or entities they control, including Corbin J. Robertson III, Christine Morenz, and William K. Robertson, are members of Robertson QES Investment LLC and expressly disclaim ownership over these shares, except to the extent of any pecuniary interest therein. The mailing address for Robertson QES Investment LLC is 1415 Louisiana Street, Suite 2400, Houston, TX, 77056.
- (4) The number reported includes 2,257 shares of common stock issued to Mr. Robertson pursuant to a restricted stock award. Until settled, Mr. Robertson has no dispositive power over the common stock underlying the restricted stock. Corbin J. Robertson, Jr. serves as a director on the Company's board of directors. The mailing address of Mr. Robertson is 1415 Louisiana Street, Suite 2400, Houston, TX, 77056.
- (5) Archer Holdco LLC is wholly-owned by Archer Well Company Inc., which is wholly-owned by Archer Assets UK Limited, which is wholly-owned by Archer Limited. The board of directors of Archer Limited has voting and dispositive power over these shares and therefore may also be deemed to be the beneficial owner of these shares. The board of directors of Archer Limited consists of Kjell-Erik Østdahl, James O'Shaughnessy, Kristian Melhuus, Giovanni Dell'Orto and Peter J. Sharpe, none of whom individually have voting and dispositive power over these shares. Each such person expressly disclaims beneficial ownership over these shares, except to the extent of any pecuniary interest therein. The mailing address for Archer Holdco LLC is 5510 Clara Rd., Houston, Texas 77041.
- (6) Geveran Investments Limited and Famatown Finance Limited are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Greenwich Holdings Limited. Mr. John Fredriksen has two settled trusts (the "Trusts"), which together own Greenwich Holdings Limited and are the indirect owners of Geveran Investments Limited, Famatown Finance Limited and these shares. The beneficiaries of both Trusts (the trustees of which are C.K. Limited) are members of Mr. Fredriksen's family. Mr. Fredriksen is neither a beneficiary nor a trustee of either Trust. Therefore Mr. Fredriksen has no economic interest in these shares and he disclaims any control over these shares, save for any indirect influence he may have with the trustees of the Trusts in his capacity as the settlor of the Trusts. The mailing address for both Geveran Investments Limited and Famatown Finance Limited is P.O. Box 53562, CY3399, Limassol, Cyprus.

#### **Director Relationships**

Following the Merger and pursuant to the terms of the related Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of May 3, 2020 (the "Merger Agreement") entered into between the Company and QES, the Board of the Company consists of nine members, including four former directors of QES (the "Designated QES Directors"). The Designated QES Directors include (1) Gunnar Eliassen, who is a partner of Seatankers Services (UK) LLP and may be deemed to be related to Geveran Investments Limited; (2) Dag Skindlo, the Chief Executive Officer of Archer Limited; and (3) Corbin J. Robertson, Jr., a selling stockholder and an affiliate of Robertson QES Investment LLC and the Quintana entities. None of the selling stockholders have any continuing director designation rights with the Company.

#### **Registration Rights Agreement**

In connection with the Merger, we entered into that certain registration rights agreement, dated as of May 3, 2020, with the selling stockholders (the "Registration Rights Agreement"). Pursuant to the Registration Rights

Agreement, the selling stockholders have certain rights briefly outlined below, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth therein. The rights under the Registration Rights Agreement are substantially similar to rights the selling stockholders had under that certain registration rights agreement entered into in connection with initial public offering of QES in 2018.

Demand Rights. Subject to certain limitations, the selling stockholders have the right, by delivering written notice to us, to require us to register the number of our common stock requested to be so registered in accordance with the Registration Rights Agreement. Within five business days of receipt of notice of a demand registration, we are required to give written notice to all other holders of registrable shares of common stock. Subject to certain limitations as described below, we will prepare and file a registration statement within 90 days of the initial request and shall use our commercially reasonable efforts to cause any registration statement to be declared effective by the SEC as soon as practicable thereafter.

*Shelf Takedowns*. Subject to certain limitations, the selling stockholders are entitled to request shelf takedowns, including underwritten shelf takedowns, subject to the Company's ability to delay such shelf takedowns in certain circumstances.

*Piggyback Rights*. Subject to certain limitations, the selling stockholders are entitled to request to participate in, or "piggyback" on, registrations of any of our common stock for sale by us in an underwritten offering.

Conditions and Limitations. The registration rights outlined above are subject to conditions and limitations, including the right of the underwriters, as applicable, to limit the number of shares to be included in a registration statement and our right to delay or withdraw a registration statement under specified circumstances.

If requested by the lead managing underwriter, the selling stockholders will not be able to make any sale of our common stock, except the common stock included in such registration, during a period commencing on the date beginning ten (10) days prior to the expected date of "pricing" of such offering and continuing for a period not to exceed 90 days beginning on the date of such final prospectus (or prospectus supplement if the offering is made pursuant to a shelf registration statement), or such shorter period as may be requested by the lead managing underwriter.

Expenses and Indemnification. In connection with any registration effected pursuant to the terms of the Registration Rights Agreement, we are required to pay for all of the fees and expenses incurred in connection with such registration, including, without limitation, registration fees, qualification and filing fees and printing expenses. However, the underwriting discounts and selling commissions payable in respect of registrable securities included in any registration are to be paid by the persons including such registrable securities in any such registration on a pro rata basis. We have also agreed to indemnify the holders of registrable securities and each of their respective officers, directors, partners and agents, the underwriters, and each person who controls such holders or underwriters, against all losses, claims, actions, damages, liabilities and expenses (joint or several) with respect to each registration effected pursuant to the Registration Rights Agreement.

Please see our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K, including any proxy statement incorporated into such Annual Report, for additional descriptions of the nature of any position, office, or other material relationship which any of the selling stockholders has had within the past three years with us and our affiliates.

#### PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

The selling stockholders may, from time to time, sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of any or all of their shares or interests in the shares on any stock exchange, market or trading facility on which the shares are traded or in private transactions. The selling stockholders may sell their shares of common stock from time to time at the prevailing market price or in privately negotiated transactions.

The selling stockholders may use any one or more of the following methods when disposing of shares or interests therein:

- on the Nasdaq, in the over-the-counter market or on any other securities exchange on which our common stock is listed or traded;
- ordinary brokerage transactions and transactions in which the broker-dealer solicits purchasers;
- block trades in which the broker-dealer will attempt to sell the shares as agent, but may position and resell a portion of the block as principal to facilitate the transaction;
- purchases by a broker-dealer as principal and resale by the broker-dealer for its account;
- an exchange distribution in accordance with the rules of the applicable exchange;
- privately negotiated transactions;
- in underwritten transactions;
- distributions to limited partners;
- short sales effected after the date the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part is declared effective by the SEC;
- through the writing or settlement of options or other hedging transactions, whether through an options exchange or otherwise;
- broker-dealers may agree with the selling stockholders to sell a specified number of such shares at a stipulated price per share; and
- a combination of any such methods of sale.

The selling stockholders may sell the shares at fixed prices, at prices then prevailing or related to the then current market price or at negotiated prices. The offering price of the shares from time to time will be determined by the selling stockholders and, at the time of the determination, may be higher or lower than the market price of our common stock on the Nasdaq or any other exchange or market.

The shares may be sold directly or through broker-dealers acting as principal or agent, or pursuant to a distribution by one or more underwriters on a firm commitment or best-efforts basis. The selling stockholders may also enter into hedging transactions with broker-dealers. In connection with such transactions, broker-dealers of other financial institutions may engage in short sales of our common stock in the course of hedging the positions they assume with the selling stockholders. The selling stockholders may also enter into options or other transactions with broker-dealers or other financial institutions which require the delivery to such broker-dealer or other financial institution of shares offered by this prospectus, which shares such broker-dealer or other financial institution may resell pursuant to this prospectus (as supplemented or amended to reflect such transaction). In connection with an underwritten offering, underwriters or agents may receive compensation in the form of discounts, concessions or commissions from the selling stockholders or from purchasers of the offered shares for whom they may act as agents. In addition, underwriters may sell the shares to or through dealers, and those dealers may receive compensation in the form of discounts, concessions from the underwriters and/or commissions from the purchasers for whom they may act as agents. The selling stockholders and any underwriters, dealers or agents

participating in a distribution of the shares may be deemed to be underwriters within the meaning of the Securities Act, and any profit on the sale of the shares by the selling stockholders and any commissions received by broker-dealers may be deemed to be underwriting commissions under the Securities Act.

The selling stockholders may agree to indemnify an underwriter, broker-dealer or agent against certain liabilities related to the selling of their shares, including liabilities arising under the Securities Act. Under the Registration Rights Agreement, we have agreed to indemnify the selling stockholders against certain liabilities related to the sale of the common stock, including certain liabilities arising under the Securities Act. Under the Registration Rights Agreement, we have also agreed to pay the costs, expenses and fees of registering the shares of common stock. All other expenses of issuance and distribution will be borne by the selling stockholders.

The selling stockholders are subject to the applicable provisions of the Exchange Act, and the rules and regulations under the Exchange Act, including Regulation M. This regulation may limit the timing of purchases and sales of any of the shares of common stock offered in this prospectus by the selling stockholders. The anti-manipulation rules under the Exchange Act may apply to sales of shares in the market and to the activities of the selling stockholders and its affiliates. Furthermore, Regulation M may restrict the ability of any person engaged in the distribution of the shares to engage in market-making activities for the particular securities being distributed for a period of up to five business days before the distribution. The restrictions may affect the marketability of the shares and the ability of any person or entity to engage in market-making activities for the shares.

To the extent required, this prospectus may be amended and/or supplemented from time to time to describe a specific plan of distribution. Instead of selling the shares of common stock under this prospectus, the selling stockholders may sell the shares of common stock in compliance with the provisions of Rule 144 under the Securities Act, if available, or pursuant to other available exemptions from the registration requirements of the Securities Act.

Under the securities laws of some states, if applicable, the securities registered hereby may be sold in those states only through registered or licensed brokers or dealers. In addition, in some states such securities may not be sold unless they have been registered or qualified for sale or an exemption from registration or qualification requirements is available and is complied with.

We cannot assure you that the selling stockholders will sell all or any portion of our common stock offered hereby.

Under the Registration Rights Agreement entered into with the selling stockholders, we agreed to use our commercially reasonable efforts to keep the registration statement of which this prospectus constitutes a part continuously effective under the Securities Act until the date that all Registrable Securities (as defined in the Registration Rights Agreement) covered by this registration statement have ceased to be Registrable Securities.

# LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the issuance of the securities offered in this prospectus will be passed upon for us by Vinson & Elkins L.L.P., Houston, Texas. If certain legal matters in connection with an offering of the securities made by this prospectus and a related prospectus supplement are passed upon by counsel for the underwriters of such offering, that counsel will be named in the applicable prospectus supplement related to that offering.

# **EXPERTS**

The financial statements incorporated in this Prospectus by reference from the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 31, 2021, have been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report, which is incorporated herein by reference. Such financial statements have been so incorporated in reliance upon the report of such firm given upon their authority as experts in accounting and auditing.

The audited historical financial statements of Quintana Energy Services, Inc. included in Annex P of KLX Energy Services Holdings, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-4 dated June 25, 2020 have been so incorporated in reliance on the report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

#### PART II

## INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS

## Item 14. Other Expenses of Issuance and Distribution.

Set forth below are the expenses (other than underwriting discounts and commissions) expected to be incurred in connection with the offering of the securities registered hereby.

SEC registration fee	\$ 11,397.90
Printing and engraving expenses	*
Accounting fees and expenses	*
Legal fees and expenses	*
Transfer agent and registrar fees	*
Miscellaneous	*
Total	\$ *

<sup>\*</sup> These fees are calculated based on the number of issuances and amount of securities offered and accordingly cannot be estimated at this time.

# Item 15. Indemnification of Directors and Officers.

Delaware General Corporation Law.

We are incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware. Section 145 of the Delaware General Corporation Law provides that a Delaware corporation may indemnify any persons who were, are or are threatened to be made parties to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (other than an action by or in the right of such corporation), by reason of the fact that such person is or was an officer, director, employee or agent of such corporation, or is or was serving at the request of such corporation as an officer, director, employee or agent of another corporation or enterprise. The indemnity may include expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by such person in connection with such action, suit or proceeding, provided that such person acted in good faith and in a manner he or she reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the corporation's best interests and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe that his or her conduct was illegal. A Delaware corporation may indemnify any persons who were, are or are threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action or suit by or in the right of the corporation by reason of the fact that such persons are or were a director, officer, employee or agent of such corporation, or are or were serving at the request of such corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation or enterprise. The indemnity may include expenses (including attorneys' fees) actually and reasonably incurred by such person in connection with the defense or settlement of such action or suit provided such person acted in good faith and in a manner he or she reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the corporation's best interests except that no indemnification is permitted without judicial approval if the officer or director is adjudged to be liable to the corporation. Where an officer or director is successful on the merits or otherwise in the defense of any action referred to above, the corporation must indemnify him or her against the expenses (including attorneys' fees) actually and reasonably incurred.

Section 102(b)(7) of the Delaware General Corporation Law permits a corporation to provide in its certificate of incorporation that a director of the corporation shall not be personally liable to the corporation or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duties as a director, except for liability for any:

- transaction from which the director derives an improper personal benefit;
- act or omission not in good faith or that involves intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law;

- unlawful payment of dividends or redemption of shares; or
- breach of a director's duty of loyalty to the corporation or its stockholders.

Section 174 of the Delaware General Corporation Law provides, among other things, that a director who willfully or negligently approves of an unlawful payment of dividends or an unlawful stock purchase or redemption may be held liable for such actions. A director who was either absent when the unlawful actions were approved or dissented at the time may avoid liability by causing his or her dissent to such actions to be entered in the books containing minutes of the meetings of the board of directors at the time such action occurred or immediately after such absent director receives notice of the unlawful acts.

## The Company's Charter Documents.

KLXE's amended and restated certificate of incorporation (the "Certificate") provides that, to the fullest extent permitted by the DGCL, no director shall be personally liable to KLXE or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director. Notwithstanding this provision, pursuant to Section 102(b)(7) of the DGCL, no such provision may exculpate a director from liability (1) for any breach of the director's duty of loyalty to KLXE or its stockholders, (2) for acts or omissions not in good faith or that involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law, (3) under Section 174 of the DGCL (which concerns unlawful payments of dividends, stock purchases or redemptions) or (4) for any transaction from which the director derives an improper personal benefit.

While the Certificate provides directors with protection from awards for monetary damages for breaches of their duty of care, it does not eliminate this duty. Accordingly, the Certificate has no effect on the availability of equitable remedies such as an injunction or rescission based on a director's breach of his or her duty of care. The provisions of the Certificate described above apply to an officer of KLXE only if he or she is a director of KLXE and is acting in his or her capacity as director and do not apply to officers of KLXE who are not directors.

The Certificate requires the Company to indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to, or was otherwise involved in, a legal proceeding by reason of the fact that he or she is or was a director or an officer of KLXE or, while serving as a director or officer of KLXE, is or was serving at the Company's request as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation or of a partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, including service with respect to an employee benefit plan, to the fullest extent authorized by the DGCL, as it exists or may be amended, against all expense, liability and loss (including attorneys' fees, judgments, fines, ERISA excise taxes or penalties and amounts paid in settlement by or on behalf of such person) actually and reasonably incurred in connection with such service (provided that, in the case of a proceeding initiated by such person, KLXE will only indemnify such person if the proceeding was specifically authorized by KLXE's Board). This right of indemnity includes, with certain limitations and exceptions, a right to be paid by KLXE the expenses incurred in defending such proceedings. KLXE is authorized under the Certificate to carry directors' and officers' insurance protecting KLXE, any director, officer, employee or agent of the Company's or another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against any expense, liability or loss, whether or not KLXE would have the power to indemnify the person under the DGCL. The Certificate also permits the Company's Board to indemnify or advance expenses to any of its employees or agents to the fullest extent permitted with respect to its directors and officers in the Company's Certificate.

## Indemnification Related to the QES Merger.

In connection with the Company's acquisition (the "Merger") of Quintana Energy Services Inc. ("QES"), the terms of the related Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of May 3, 2020 entered into between the Company and QES, provides that all rights to exculpation, indemnification and advancement of expenses existing for current or former directors, officers or employees of QES or its subsidiaries immediately prior to the Merger survives the Merger and continues in full force and effect. For a period of six years from the effective

time of the Merger (the "Effective Time"), KLXE and QES will maintain the exculpation, indemnification and advancement of expenses provisions of QES's and any of its subsidiaries' organization documents in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time or any indemnification agreements of QES or its subsidiaries with their respective directors, officers or employees in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time, and will not amend, repeal or adversely modify any rights under such agreements of any individuals who immediately prior to the Effective Time were current or former directors, officers or employees of QES or its subsidiaries.

After the Effective Time, each of KLXE and QES will indemnify and hold harmless to the fullest extent under applicable law the present and former officers, directors, employees and agents (the "Indemnified Parties") of QES and subsidiaries in such capacities, against any losses, damages, expenses or liabilities resulting from any claim, liability, loss, damage, cost or expense asserted against or incurred by an Indemnified Party based on the fact that such Indemnified Party is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of QES or its subsidiaries and arising out of actions or omissions or alleged actions or omissions occurring at or prior to the Effective Time. KLXE will pay reasonable expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, incurred by an Indemnified Party in enforcing the indemnity. These rights of each Indemnified Party are in addition to any other rights such Indemnified Party may have under the organization documents of QES or its subsidiaries, any other indemnification agreement, the DGCL or otherwise, and such provisions survive the consummation of the Merger.

For a period of six years from the Effective Time, KLXE will maintain QES's and its subsidiaries' existing directors' and officers' liability insurance and fiduciary liability insurance policies which are in effect at the Effective Time with respect to matters arising on or before the Effective Time.

## Additional Information.

KLXE also maintains directors' and officers' liability insurance.

KLXE may enter into one or more underwriting agreements which provide that the underwriters will be obligated, under some circumstances, to indemnify our directors, officers and controlling persons against specified liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act.

#### Item 16. Exhibits.

The following documents are filed as exhibits to this registration statement, including those exhibits incorporated herein by reference to a prior filing of KLX Energy Services Holdings, Inc. under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act as indicated in parentheses:

Exhibit <u>Number</u>	<u>Exhibits</u>
1.1*	Form of Underwriting Agreement
2.1	Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated May 3, 2020, by and among KLX Energy Services Holdings, Inc., Quintana Energy Services Inc., Krypton Intermediate LLC and Krypton Merger Sub Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to KLX Energy Services Holdings, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 4, 2020, File No. 001-38609).
3.1	Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of KLX Energy Services Holdings, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to KLX Energy Services Holdings, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed on September 8, 2020, File No. 001-38609).
3.2	Third Amended and Restated Bylaws of KLX Energy Services Holdings, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to KLX Energy Services Holdings, Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on December 8, 2020, File No. 001-38609).

Exhibit <u>Number</u>	<u>Exhibits</u>
4.1	<u>Description of Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-38609) filed with the SEC on April 16, 2021).</u>
5.1**	Opinion of Vinson & Elkins L.L.P. as to the legality of the securities being registered.
10.1	Registration Rights Agreement, dated May 3, 2020, by and among KLX Energy Services Holdings, Inc., Archer Holdco LLC, Geveran Investments Limited, Famatown Finance Limited Robertson QES Investment LLC, Quintana Energy Partners—QES Holdings LLC, Quintana Energy Fund – TE, L.P. and Quintana Energy Fund – FI, L.P (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to KLX Energy Services Holdings, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 4, 2020, File No. 001-38609).
23.1**	Consent of PricewaterhouseCooper.
23.2**	Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP
23.3**	Consent of Vinson & Elkins L.L.P. (included in Exhibit 5.1).
24.1**	Powers of Attorney (included on signature pages of this registration statement).

<sup>\*</sup> To be filed by amendment or as an exhibit to a current report on Form 8-K of KLX Energy Services Holdings, Inc.

## Item 17. Undertakings.

The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes:

- (a) To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this registration statement:
  - (i) To include any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933;
  - (ii) To reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the registration statement (or the most recent post-effective amendment thereof) which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in the information set forth in the registration statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or decrease in volume of securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities offered would not exceed that which was registered) and any deviation from the low or high end of the estimated maximum offering range may be reflected in the form of prospectus filed with the Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b) if, in the aggregate, the changes in volume and price represent no more than 20 percent change in the maximum aggregate offering price set forth in the "Calculation of Registration Fee" table in the effective registration statement;
  - (iii) To include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the registration statement or any material change to such information in the registration statement;

*provided*, *however*, that paragraphs (a)(i), (a)(ii) and (a)(iii) do not apply if the information required to be included in a post-effective amendment by those paragraphs is contained in reports filed with or furnished to the Commission by the registrant pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 that are incorporated by reference in the registration statement, or is contained in a form of prospectus filed pursuant to Rule 424(b) that is part of the registration statement.

(b) That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, each such post-effective amendment shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial *bona fide* offering thereof.

<sup>\*\*</sup> Filed herewith.

- (c) To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which remain unsold at the termination of the offering.
- (d) That, for the purpose of determining liability under the Securities Act of 1933 to any purchaser:
  - (i) Each prospectus filed by the registrant pursuant to Rule 424(b)(3) shall be deemed to be part of the registration statement as of the date the filed prospectus was deemed part of and included in the registration statement; and
  - (ii) Each prospectus required to be filed pursuant to Rule 424(b)(2), (b)(5) or (b)(7) as part of a registration statement in reliance on Rule 430B relating to an offering made pursuant to Rule 415(a)(1)(i), (vii) or (x) for the purpose of providing the information required by Section 10(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 shall be deemed to be part of and included in the registration statement as of the earlier of the date such form of prospectus is first used after effectiveness or the date of the first contract of sale of securities in the offering described in the prospectus. As provided in Rule 430B, for liability purposes of the issuer and any person that is at that date an underwriter, such date shall be deemed to be a new effective date of the registration statement relating to the securities in the registration statement to which that prospectus relates, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof; provided, however, that no statement made in a registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement or made in a document incorporated or deemed incorporated by reference into the registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement will, as to a purchaser with a time of contract of sale prior to such effective date, supersede or modify any statement that was made in the registration statement or prospectus that was part of the registration statement or made in any such document immediately prior to such effective date.
- (e) That, for the purpose of determining liability of the registrant under the Securities Act of 1933 to any purchaser in the initial distribution of the securities, the undersigned registrant undertakes that in a primary offering of securities of the undersigned registrant pursuant to this registration statement, regardless of the underwriting method used to sell the securities to the purchaser, if the securities are offered or sold to such purchaser by means of any of the following communications, the undersigned registrant will be a seller to the purchaser and will be considered to offer or sell such securities to such purchaser:
  - (i) Any preliminary prospectus or prospectus of the undersigned registrant relating to the offering required to be filed pursuant to Rule 424:
  - (ii) Any free writing prospectus relating to the offering prepared by or on behalf of the undersigned registrant or used or referred to by the undersigned registrant;
  - (iii) The portion of any other free writing prospectus relating to the offering containing material information about the undersigned registrant or its securities provided by or on behalf of the undersigned registrant; and
  - (iv) Any other communication that is an offer in the offering made by the undersigned registrant to the purchaser.

The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes that, for purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, each filing of the registrant's annual report pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (and, where applicable, each filing of an employee benefit plan's annual report pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) that is incorporated by reference in the registration statement shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial *bona fide* offering thereof.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons of the registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the

registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by the registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling person of the registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the registrant will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act of 1933 and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.

The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes that:

- (1) For purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, the information omitted from the form of prospectus filed as part of this registration statement in reliance upon Rule 430A and contained in a form of prospectus filed by the registrant pursuant to Rule 424(b) (1) or (4) or 497(h) under the Securities Act shall be deemed to be part of this registration statement as of the time it was declared effective.
- (2) For the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each post-effective amendment that contains a form of prospectus shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial *bona fide* offering thereof.

### **SIGNATURES**

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act, the registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this registration statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Houston, State of Texas, on May 14, 2021.

### KLX ENERGY SERVICES HOLDINGS, INC.

By: /s/ Christopher J. Baker
Christopher J. Baker
President and Chief Executive Officer

Each person whose signature appears below appoints Christopher J. Baker and Max L. Bouthillette, and each of them, any of whom may act without the joinder of the other, as his or her true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him or her and in his name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments (including post-effective amendments) to this Registration Statement and any Registration Statement (including any amendment thereto) for this offering that is to be effective upon filing pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and all other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done, as fully to all intents and purposes as he or she might or would do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents or any of them or their or his substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this Registration Statement has been signed below by the following persons in the capacities indicated below as of May 14, 2021.

<u>Name</u>	<u>11tte</u>
/s/ Christopher J. Baker	
Christopher J. Baker	President and Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ Keefer M. Lehner	
Keefer M. Lehner	Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)
/s/ Geoffrey C. Stanford	
Geoffrey C. Stanford	Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer (Principal Accounting Officer)
/s/ John T. Collins	
John T. Collins	Director
/s/ Dalton Boutté, Jr.	
Dalton Boutté, Jr.	Director
/s/ Gunnar Eliassen	
Gunnar Eliassen	Director

/s/ Richard G. Hamermesh	_
Richard G. Hamermesh	Director
/s/ Thomas P. McCaffrey	_
Thomas P. McCaffrey	Director
/s/ Corbin J. Robertson, Jr.	_
Corbin J. Robertson, Jr.	Director
/s/ Dag Skindlo	_
Dag Skindlo	Director
/s/ Stephen M. Ward, Jr.	_
Stephen M. Ward, Jr.	Director
/s/ John T. Whates, Esq.	_
John T. Whates, Esq.	Director



May 14, 2021

KLX Energy Services Holdings, Inc. 3040 Post Oak Boulevard, 15th Floor Houston, TX 77056

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have acted as counsel for KLX Energy Services Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Company"), in connection with the preparation of the Registration Statement on Form S-3 (the "Registration Statement") filed on or about the date hereof with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Commission") in connection with the registration by the Company under the Securities Act of 1933 (the "Securities Act"), of the offer and sale (a) by the Company from time to time, pursuant to Rule 415 under the Securities Act, of up to \$75 million of shares of common stock (the "Company Shares"), par value \$0.01, of the Company (the "Common Stock") and (b) by the selling stockholders named in the Registration Statement (the "Selling Stockholders") of up to 2,501,865 shares of Common Stock (the "Selling Stockholder Shares," and together with the Company Shares, the "Shares").

We have also participated in the preparation of a Prospectus relating to the Company Shares (the "*Primary Prospectus*") and a Prospectus relating to the Selling Stockholder Shares (the "*Secondary Prospectus*" and, together with the Primary Prospectus, the "*Prospectuses*") each of which is contained in the Registration Statement to which this opinion is an exhibit.

In connection with the opinion expressed herein, we have examined, among other things, (i) the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, (ii) the Certificate of Amendment of the Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company, (iii) the Third Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company, (iv) the resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company relating to the Registration Statement and related matters, (v) the Registration Statement, (vi) the Prospectuses and (vii) such other certificates, instruments and documents as we considered appropriate for purposes of the opinions hereafter expressed. We have also reviewed such questions of law as we have deemed necessary or appropriate. As to matters of fact relevant to the opinion expressed herein and as to factual matters arising in connection with our examination of corporate documents, records and other documents and writings, we relied upon certificates and other communications of corporate officers of the Company, without further investigation as to the facts set forth therein.

In connection with this opinion, we have assumed that (i) all information contained in all documents we reviewed is true, correct and complete, (ii) all signatures on all documents we reviewed are genuine, (iii) all documents submitted to us as originals are true and complete, (iv) all documents submitted to us as copies are true and complete copies of the originals thereof, (v) all persons executing

Vinson & Elkins LLP Attorneys at Law

Austin Dallas Dubai Houston London Los Angeles New York Richmond Riyadh San Francisco Tokyo Washington 1001 Fannin Street, Suite 2500 Houston, TX 77002-6760 **Tel** +1.713.758.2222 **Fax** +1.713.758.2346 velaw.com



and delivering the documents we examined were competent to execute and deliver such documents, (vi) the Shares will be issued and sold in compliance with applicable federal and state securities laws and in the manner stated in the Registration Statement and a prospectus supplement to the applicable Prospectus, (vii) the Registration Statement, and any post-effective amendments thereto, will be effective and comply with all applicable laws; (viii) one or more prospectus supplements to the applicable Prospectus will have been prepared and filed with the Commission describing the Shares offered thereby; (ix) at the time of any offering or sale of Company Shares, that the Company will have at least such number of Shares authorized, created and, if appropriate, reserved for issuance; and (x) a definitive purchase, underwriting or similar agreement with respect to any Shares offered will have been duly authorized and validly executed and delivered by the Company and the other parties thereto.

Based upon the foregoing, we are of the opinion that, under the Securities Act:

- 1. With respect to the Company Shares, when both (A) the board of directors (the "*Board*") of the Company (or a committee thereof) has taken all necessary corporate action to approve the issuance of and the terms of the offering of the shares of Common Stock and related matters and (B) certificates representing the shares of Common Stock have been duly executed, countersigned, registered, and delivered (or non-certificated shares of Common Stock shall have been properly issued) in accordance with the applicable definitive purchase, underwriting, or similar agreement approved by the Board or such officers upon payment of the consideration therefor (not less than the par value of the Common Stock) provided for therein, then the shares of Common Stock will be validly issued, fully paid, and nonassessable; and
- 2. The Selling Stockholder Shares proposed to be sold by the Selling Stockholders have been duly authorized and are validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable.

The opinions expressed herein are limited in all respects to the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (including the applicable provisions of the Delaware Constitution and the reported judicial decisions interpreting these laws) and the federal laws of the United States of America, and we do not express any opinions as to the laws of any other jurisdiction.

We hereby consent to the filing of this opinion as an exhibit to the Registration Statement and to the use of our name in the Prospectuses forming a part of the Registration Statement under the caption "Legal Matters." In giving this consent, we do not admit that we are within the category of persons whose consent is required under Section 7 of the Securities Act and the rules and regulations thereunder.

The opinion expressed herein is given as of the date hereof and we undertake no obligations to supplement this opinion if any applicable law changes after such date or if we become aware of any facts that might change the opinion expressed herein after such date or for any other reason.

Very truly yours,

/s/ Vinson & Elkins LLP

## CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in this Registration Statement on Form S-3 of KLX Energy Services Holdings, Inc. of our report dated March 5, 2020, relating to the financial statements of Quintana Energy Services Inc., which appears in KLX Energy Services Holdings, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-4 dated June 25, 2020. We also consent to the reference to us under the heading "Experts" in such Registration Statement.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP Houston, TX May 14, 2021

## CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in this Registration Statement on Form S-3 of our report dated April 28, 2021 relating to the financial statements of KLX Energy Services Holdings, Inc., appearing in the Annual Report on Form 10-K of KLX Energy Services Holdings, Inc. for the year ended January 31, 2021. We also consent to the reference to us under the heading "Experts" in the prospectuses which are part of such Registration Statement.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Tampa, FL May 14, 2021